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IN THE UNITED STATES ARMY 
FIRST JUDICIAL CIRCUIT 

 

U N I T E D  S T A T E S ) 
 )         DEFENSE REQUESTED   
v. )         INSTRUCTION:  ARTICLE 92  
  )         AND SPECIFICATION 1 OF    
MANNING, Bradley E., PFC )         CHARGE II  
U.S. Army,   ) 
Headquarters and Headquarters Company, U.S. 
Army Garrison, Joint Base Myer-Henderson Hall, 
Fort Myer, VA  22211 

) 
)   DATED: 22 June 2012 
) 

 

1.  The Defense requests the Court issue the standard Military Judges Benchbook instructions for 
the Article 92 offense in Charge III. 
 
2.  The Defense requests the following instructions to be given to the panel regarding 
Specification 1 of Charge II: 
 
Court Instructions 
 
In Specification 1 and Charge II, the accused is charged with the offense of disorders and 
neglects to the prejudice of good order and discipline or of a nature to bring discredit upon the 
armed forces, a violation of Article 134, UCMJ.  To find the accused guilty of this offense, you 
must be convinced by legal and competent evidence beyond a reasonable doubt of the following 
two (2) elements: 
 
(1)  That the accused did, at or near Contingency Operating Station Hammer, Iraq, between on or 
about 1 November 2009 and on or about 27 May 2010,wrongfully and wantonly cause to be 
published on the internet intelligence belonging to the United States government, having 
knowledge that intelligence published on the internet is accessible to the enemy; and 

(2)  That, under the circumstances, the conduct of the accused was to the prejudice of good order 
and discipline in the armed forces and was of a nature to bring discredit upon the armed forces. 

 
Authority:  Article 134, UCMJ, 10 U.S.C. § 934; Military Judges Benchbook, DA Pam 27-9, 
para. 3-60-2A. 
 
Court Definitions 
 
(1)  Wrongfully and Wantonly Cause to be Published on the Internet 
 
The first element that the government must prove beyond a reasonable doubt is that the accused 
wrongfully and wantonly caused to be published on the Internet intelligence belonging to the 
United States.  

(b) (6)
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“Wrongful” or “wrongfully” means without legal justification or excuse.   
 
“Wanton” or “wantonly” includes “recklessness” but may connote willfulness, or a disregard of 
probable consequences, and thus describes a more aggravated offense.  
 
A person causes intelligence to be published on the Internet when the person personally 
publishes the intelligence on the Internet or knowingly or intentionally induces or sets in motion  
acts by an animate or inanimate agency or instrumentality which result in the publication of the 
intelligence on the Internet.   
 
If you find that the accused did not wrongfully and wantonly cause intelligence to be published 
on the Internet, you must find the accused not guilty of this offense. 
 
Authority:  Article 134, UCMJ, 10 U.S.C. § 934; Military Judges Benchbook, DA Pam 27-9, 
para. 3-60-2A; MCM, Part IV, para. 1.b(2)(a); id., Part IV, para. 35.c(8) (defining “wanton” for 
purposes of Article 111); id., Part IV, para. 100a.c(4) (defining “wanton” for purposes of Article 
134, offense of “reckless endangerment”). 
 
(2)  Knowledge that Intelligence Published on the Internet is Accessible to the Enemy 
 
The second element that the government must prove beyond a reasonable doubt is that the 
accused had knowledge that information published on the Internet would be accessible to the 
enemy.   
 
This element requires that the accused actually knew that information published on the Internet 
would be accessible to the enemy.  That is, actual knowledge on the part of the accused is 
required, and constructive knowledge is insufficient.  In other words, this element is not satisfied 
if you find only that the accused should have known that information published on the Internet 
would be accessible to the enemy, but that the accused did not actually know this fact.   
 
If you find that the accused did not actually know that information published on the Internet 
would be accessible to the enemy, you must find the accused not guilty.  An accused’s mistake 
as to this fact, no matter how unreasonable, is a complete defense to this offense, so long as the 
mistake was genuine. 
 
Authority:  Appellate Exhibit LXXX, at 5 (explaining that one of the elements of Specification 
1 of Charge II is “that the accused knew that intelligence published on the internet is accessible 
to the enemy”); United States v. Nix, 29 C.M.R. 507, 511 (C.M.A. 1960); United States v. 
Walters, 28 C.M.R. 164, 167 (C.M.A. 1959) (“[W]here subjective knowledge is required, 
reasonableness is not one of the criteria which should be used in instructing on mistake of law or 
fact.”). 
 
(3) Conduct prejudicial to good order and discipline 

With respect to “prejudice to good order and discipline,” the law recognizes that almost any 
irregular or improper act on the part of a service member could be regarded as prejudicial in 
some indirect or remote sense; however, only those acts in which the prejudice is reasonably 
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direct and palpable is punishable under this Article. 
 
With respect to “service discrediting,” the law recognizes that almost any irregular or improper 
act on the part of a service member could be regarded as service discrediting in some indirect or 
remote sense; however, only those acts which would have a tendency to bring the service into 
disrepute or which tend to lower it in public esteem are punishable under this Article. 
 
Not every act of publishing intelligence belonging to the United States government on the 
Internet constitutes an offense under the UCMJ.  The government must prove beyond a 
reasonable doubt, either by direct evidence or by inference, that the accused’s conduct was 
prejudicial to good order and discipline in the armed forces and was of a nature to bring discredit 
upon the armed forces.  In resolving this issue, you should consider all the facts and 
circumstances to include the effect, if any, upon the accused’s or another’s ability to perform 
his/her/their duties; the effect the conduct may have had upon the morale or efficiency of a 
military unit; the harm, if any, to the United States or the unit from the alleged disclosures. 
 
If you find that the accused’s conduct was not prejudicial to good order and discipline and/or was 
not of a nature to bring discredit upon the armed forces, you must find the accused not guilty. 

Authority:  Article 134, UCMJ, 10 U.S.C. § 934; Military Judges Benchbook, DA Pam 27-9, 
para. 3-60-2A; United States v. Mayo, 12 MJ 286 (C.M.A. 1982); United States v. Perez, 33 MJ 
1050 (A.C.M.R. 1991); United States v. Sellars, 5 MJ 814 (A.C.M.R .1977).  
 
Maximum Punishment 

3.  Rule for Courts-Martial (R.C.M.) 1003(c)(1)(B)(i) provides:   
 

For an offense not listed in Part IV of this Manual which is included in or closely 
related to an offense listed therein the maximum punishment shall be that of the 
offense listed; however, if an offense not listed is included in a listed offense, and 
is closely related to another or is equally related to two or more listed offenses, 
the maximum punishment shall be the same as the least severe of the listed 
offenses.   
 

R.C.M. 1003(c)(1)(B)(i). 
 
4.  The Defense submits the charged specification is closely related to a violation of Article 92 
for failure to obey a regulation, AR 380-5.  First, Specification 1 of Charge II and a violation of 
AR 380-5 have similar mens rea requirements: the charged specification requires that an accused 
act wrongfully and wantonly (including recklessness, willfulness, or a disregard of probable 
consequences), and AR 380-5 punishes one who “knowingly, willfully, or negligently” discloses 
covered information, AR 380-5, para. 1-21(a).  Second, the intelligence information covered by 
Specification 1 of Charge II is likely within the definitions of “classified information” or 
“sensitive information” contained in AR 380-5.  Finally, the conduct underlying the offense 
alleged in the charged specification is closely related to the conduct that would constitute a 
violation of AR 380-5: the disclosure of information to an unauthorized person entity.  An 
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Article 92 failure to obey a regulation carries a two-year maximum confinement.  So too does the 
offense alleged in Specification 1 of Charge II.   
 
5.  Although the Government has alleged knowledge on the part of PFC Manning that 
intelligence published on the Internet is accessible to the enemy, this does not rise to the 
knowledge required by Article 104, aiding the enemy.  The knowledge required for Specification 
1 of Charge II – knowledge that information on the Internet could be accessed by an enemy – is 
far removed from the knowledge required for the Article 104 offense – “actual knowledge by the 
accused that he was giving intelligence to the enemy.”  Appellate Exhibit LXXXI, at 2.  
Therefore, Specification 1 of Charge II is not closely related to a violation of Article 104.  
Moreover, a capital offense may not be tried under Article 134, see 10 U.S.C. § 934, and Article 
104 provides for capital punishment, see id. § 904 (providing that any person who violates the 
section “shall suffer death or such other punishment as a court-martial or military commission 
may direct.”).  Thus, the Article 104 offense cannot be considered in determining what offenses 
are “closely related” under R.C.M. 1003(c)(1)(B)(i).   
 
6.  The Defense respectfully requests the above instructions and definitions be given by the 
Court. 
 

           Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
 
 

                                                                       DAVID EDWARD COOMBS 
                                                                       Civilian Defense Counsel  
 




